## Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments Regional Planning Commission

Virtual Video Conference Meeting 6:30 p.m., Tuesday, April 02, 2024

#### Join Zoom Meeting

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83465712463?pwd=RE16eEZ3RTJUVHBmazM2Y21XQ2VmZz09

#### Meeting ID: 834 6571 2463 Passcode: 494366

- 1. Commencement of Meeting
  - 2. Pledge of Allegiance
  - 3. Roll Call
  - 4. Public Comment
- 5. Administrative Items
  - 6. Adoption of Meeting Minutes (Motion)
    - 1. December 05, 2023 Meeting Minutes
  - 7. Referrals Report 11/22/2023 -03/21/2024
  - 8. Correspondence
- 9. Regional Planning Commission Discussion Continued
- 10. Roundtable Discussion of local activities and municipal land use processes
- 11. NVCOG Updates
- 12. Adjournment

Called by

David White, Chair, NVCOG Regional Planning Commission

Any member of the public wishing to address the Commission members at a Regional Planning Commission virtual meeting should send an email to <u>info@nvcogct.gov</u> with the following information:

- Your name, address and any professional affiliation (for the public record)
- Your phone number (only if you are using the phone dial-in option)
- The item number on the agenda you plan to address in your comments

Your information must be received by 4:30 p.m. on the day before the meeting. Because of the need for stable meetings and public security, anyone who does not provide the above information cannot be admitted to our online meetings.



#### MINUTES Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments Regional Planning Commission 6:30 p.m., Tuesday, December 5, 2023

#### 1. Commencement of Meeting

Chairman David White called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. The meeting was held via Zoom. Those in attendance recited the Pledge of Allegiance and the roll was called. There was no public comment.

<u>Present</u>: David White, Bristol; Gino DiGiovanni, Jr., Derby; Curtis Bosco, Middlebury; Lori Rotella, Naugatuck; Gil Graveline, Prospect; Ginny Harger, Shelton; Kim McNeil, Southbury; Bob Nerney, Waterbury.

NVCOG Staff: Savannah-Nicole Villalba, Molly Johnson, Pheobe Ploof, Emely Ricci.

Chairman White noted that a quorum was present.

There were no members of the public present to address the Commission.

#### 2. Administrative Items

## Approval of June 6, 2023, Meeting Minutes

Bob Nerney MOVED to approve the minutes of the June 6, 2023 RPC meeting; SECONDED by Gino DiGiovanni. The motion carried unanimously with Ginny Harger abstaining.

Ginny Harger MOVED to approve the minutes of the October 3, 2023 RPC meeting; SECONDED by Kim McNeill. The motion carried unanimously.

## **Retroactive Referrals Report**

There was no discussion regarding the Retroactive Referrals Report for the period of 9/26 – 11/21/2023.

## <u>Correspondence</u>

None presented.

## 3. Regional Planning Commission Discussion (continued from 10/3/2023 meeting)

This discussion continued from the last meeting.

Savannah-Nicole reiterated that the RPC continuing to meet like this may not be the best model moving forward. NVCOG recommends a new model for Commissioners that has specific events and programming. She explained that this recommendation will be more effective for everyone and supports the direction the

organization is moving in. Land Use Commissioners would no longer have to attend multiple meetings that often do not have a quorum. She recommended that NVCOG sponsor different 2-hour events throughout the region, such as Pizza and Planning gatherings and Municipal Tours/Highlights, coupled with an hour of training with time for questions and answers in a roundtable manner. She feels these venues could pull the commissioners together in a really good model.

She suggested the same for Land Use Staff, who spend their days enforcing and helping community members, a new model that has specific events and programming. She wants to bring them together to ensure that our land use policies are implementable on the local level and align across departments. NVCOG can come forth with proposals that align with whatever comprehensive policies that we're putting forth regionally, while providing what each town needs. We will support and work in concert with your Land Use staff, so they have whatever they need for informed decision making. We can also help with grants and studies that your staff are involved in.

NVCOG will continue to conduct fall land use training every 4 years. Staff will also continue attending various commission meetings as necessary (Planning, Zoning, Planning & Zoning, Inland-Wetlands, Zoning Board of Appeals, etc.) She stressed that NVCOG is, and will continue to be, a resource for town staff. If there is a particular subject the towns would like us to present on, you can always call on us. Community Planning has grown to a four-person team that's very committed to helping municipalities. She explained that she hopes to conduct the first Pizza and Planning event in the first quarter of 2024.

Regarding Land Use Training, Savannah-Nicole provided the Commissioners with links to 8 hours of Land Use Training that are posted on the NVCOG website. She explained that if someone hasn't been able to meet the training requirement, they can view our training online. NVCOG works hard to get the state partners to be part of our land use training and takes a long time to put them together. Regardless of whether RPC continues or not, she will announce any planned training sessions in early 2024.

Land Use staff look for very specific support – professional development opportunities that align for us as practitioners. If we can get AICP credit – that is a goal. Continuing education credits. We are really looking wholistically to ensure that everybody has the best information they can to advance the goals for the region. In addition, we always put our training on our YouTube channel – she encourages everyone to look there every so often.

Savannah-Nicole reminded the commissioners that even if the decision is for the RPC not to continue in this way, they may call her at any point and we'll come with coffee and chat.

Emely Ricci explained the new Referrals Report Webpage on the NVCOG website.

Each community will still get referrals emailed to them for the time being. No decision has been made about the RPC, so this will continue until a decision is made. The referrals are here on the webpage.

# 4. Roundtable – Discussion of local activities and municipal land use processes

David – Bristol's Regulations will be posted online with the hyperlinks. They had a request in the form of a referral to identify unified residential developments in the BT zone. We're looking at allowing adjacent

properties to combine in order to develop housing that may not fit in a single lot. It's contentious because the lawyers want to open the entire BT zone for unified residential development. The town would rather see targeted unified residential developments in the BT zone. It's on next weeks' agenda.

Curtis – Middlebury has a full slate, the busiest meeting in his 16-year history with the commission. They have the distribution center "warehousing" 3 applications. They have an application for luxury apartments on the border of Waterbury, along Straits Turnpike. It's getting mixed reviews. Luxury apartments seem to be a vibrant new thing in the state. There are 3 subdivision applications.

Gino – Derby didn't meet last month and has no new applications. Route 34 is switched over to the northbound side, the southbound side has opened up to traffic. The new fuel cell is open. Things have been slow on the Planning & Zoning side, but it's expected to pick up when the expected development along the finished Route 34 project begins. The water tower is complete; he's not sure if it's filled/tested, but the site looks really good.

Lori – Naugatuck is finishing up it's POCD. The public hearing will be held Monday and then it will be ready to adopt. She is excited for the changes and is hoping they all go through.

Gil – Prospect will be working on gas station separations/distances. He noted the regulations for day care homes is confusing. Savannah-Nicole will resend the information to the RPC and attach our Land Use Brief, which explains it pretty well. Prospect is also working on its POCD. He asked which way Cheshire is going regarding Chesprocott. There was nobody there from Cheshire to answer.

Ginny – Shelton has two new Alternates to the Planning & Zoning Commission. Fountain Square is coming along; things are easing out. Many retail venues are opening. The Commission came to a consensus and directed staff to provide an unfavorable resolution to a proposed 145 apartment complex that was not part of the original planned development district. They understand that the applicant will now file a 30g application.

Another unfavorable resolution was for a condo complex previously approved for 36 units but they came back to expand for another 28 units. On River Road there was an approval for 152 units in four buildings. In the corporate park area off of Commerce Drive, an application for a prepared foods operation was received. The food would come into the Shelton facility and then be put on vans for personal home deliveries. That is a special exception on next week's agenda.

There is a 19-unit apartment building proposed for the former site of a small manufacturing building downtown. It will be a major improvement for that site. There was an application for a zone change in the residential area off of Constitution Boulevard next year. They approved an expansion to a LI building. A 52-unit apartment building was approved in the south Shelton/Nichols area.

Shelton is working on recodifying its Zoning regulations to put them in conformity with the public act regarding group and family child day care homes in residential zones.

Kim McNeil - Southbury is reviewing the same regulations update for group and family day care homes. The Economic Development Director is working to increase the efficiency of commercial apps. There are many activities wrapping up Southbury's 350<sup>th</sup> Anniversary celebrations.

Bob Nerney – Waterbury is busy working on the department budget. They will be funding an update to their POCD, which is set to sunset in September of 2026. They'll be putting together the RFP in the months to come. There are several subdivisions and projects from past years that the approvals have been extended and are coming back. One, off Highland Avenue, is a project that was partially completed, then stalled, and is now coming back.

Waterbury has a new Mayor. He is the former president of the Board of Aldermen, and is a good leader, intelligent, supports smart growth and economic development.

# 5. NVCOG Updates

Savannah-Nicole explained that we just published our Community Planning newsletter and will share it with the RPC. We are proud of the work that happened in our newsletter. We publish this newsletter quarterly.

She asked the Commissioners to think about the question, "Does the commission want to see the RPC continue?" She again stated that she's not sure this is the best model. In our quarterly newsletter, we can include blurbs about what has gone on regionally during the last quarter. If the commission determines you are interested in the way we propose, it doesn't end RPC immediately. If you support us moving in that direction, we will hold one more meeting in February – maybe in person – to enjoy one meal to see this to its finality. NVCOG has made our case over the last two meetings. We will leave it on the agenda to see where you would like to go.

## 6. Adjournment

Chairman White adjourned the meeting at approximately 7:40 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Patricia M. Bruder Executive Administrative Clerk



April 02, 2024

MEMORANDUM:	04022024- NVCOG Referral Report: November 22, 2023- March 21, 2024
To:	Naugatuck Vallery Council of Governments Regional Planning Commission
From:	Emely Ricci, Community Planner, Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments
Subject:	NVCOG Referral Report: November 22, 2023- March 21, 2024

NVCOG Reference Number	Municipality	Date Rec'd	Туре	Adjacent Munis	Regionally Significant	Description of Referral
DERB-28-112723-Z	Derby	11/27/2023	Z	Orange, Woodbridge, Ansonia, Seymour, Shelton	No	Text Amendments - Family and Group Child Care Homes
NEWT-29-120123-Z	Newtown	12/1/2023	Z	Easton, Monroe, Oxford, Southbury, Bridgewater, Brookfield, Bethel, Redding	No	Text Amendments re: Pig Farming
WTTN-30-121223-Z	Watertown	12/12/2023	Z	Middlebury, Waterbury, Thomaston, Litchfield, Morris, Bethlehem, Woodbury	No	Text Amendment and Zone Change - 1490 Echo Lake Rd IR-80 to IG-80



NVCOG Reference Number	Municipality	Date Rec'd	Туре	Adjacent Munis	Regionally Significant	Description of Referral
TRUM-31-121423-Z	Trumbull	12/14/2023	Z	Bridgeport, Stratford, Shelton, Monroe, Easton, Fairfield	Response was sent.	Text Amendment to Revise Article 2: Section 2 Special Residential Zones; Section 2.3 Affordable Housing Zones; Section 2.5 Assisted Living Facility Zone (Residential); Section 2.6 Assisted Living Facility Zone (Industrial)
TRUM-32-121423-Z	Trumbull	12/14/2023	Z	Bridgeport, Stratford, Shelton, Monroe, Easton, Fairfield	Response was sent.	Text Amendment to Revise Article 2: Section 3.2 b-c Long Hill Green and Town Hall Node
TRUM-33-121423-Z	Trumbull	12/14/2023	Z	Bridgeport, Stratford, Shelton, Monroe, Easton, Fairfield	Response was sent.	Text Amendment to Revise Article 2: Section 4 Industrial Zones and Remove Section 7.1 Uses Required or Prohibited in Industrial Zones and Section 7.2 Industrial - Office Park
TRUM-34-010324-Z	Trumbull	1/3/2024	Z	Bridgeport, Stratford, Shelton, Monroe, Easton, Fairfield	No	Text Amendments to Revise Article 1: Sec. 3 Definition; Article XVII: Moratorium on Multi-family Residential Rental Housing



NVCOG Reference Number	Municipality	Date Rec'd	Туре	Adjacent Munis	Regionally Significant	Description of Referral
NAUG-35-011824-Z	Naugatuck	1/18/2024	Z	Beacon Falls, Bethany, Prospect, Waterbury, Middlebury, Oxford	No	Proposed Zone Change request for a parcel in Naugatuck from R-65 Residential Use to R-15 Residential Use.
NAUG-36-011824-Z	Naugatuck	1/18/2024	Z	Beacon Falls, Bethany, Prospect, Waterbury, Middlebury, Oxford	No	Text Amendment to reduce the side and rear property line setbacks for above-ground pools in RA-1, R-8 and R- 15 Residential Zones
NEWT-37-012324-Z	Newtown	1/23/2024	Z	Easton, Monroe, Oxford, Southbury, Bridgewater, Brookfield, Bethel, Redding	No	Zone Change from M-4 district to M-5 district for 57 Church Hill Road
WTBY-38-020224-Z	Waterbury	2/2/2024	Z	Naugatuck, Prospect, Cheshire, Wolcott, Plymouth, Thomaston, Watertown, Middlebury	No	City of Waterbury proposed amendment to Zoning Regulations Sections 4.08, 10.30.02 and 10.30.03 to allow any legal nonconforming and lawfully permitted medical cannabis dispensary facility located in the IG district the option to convert to a Cannabis Establishment Hybrid Retailer use.



NVCOG Reference Number	Municipality	Date Rec'd	Туре	Adjacent Munis	Regionally Significant	Description of Referral
TRUM-39-020824-Z	Trumbull	2/8/2024	Z	Bridgeport, Stratford, Shelton, Monroe, Easton, Fairfield	No	Text Amendment - Revised Article I: Section 3 Definition - File #24-05 - Farm Definition
ORAN-40-020924-Z	Orange	2/9/2024	Z	Milford, West Haven, New Haven, Woodbridge, Derby, Shelton	Response was sent.	Text Amendment submitted by Racebrook Medical Center LLC to amend Section 383-188 of the Orange Zoning Regulations
WOLC-41-021624-Z	Wolcott	2/16/2024	Z	Cheshire, Southington, Bristol, Plymouth, Waterbury	Response was sent.	Amend Regulation 32.2.13 Automobile and Truck Sales
NAUG-42-022124-S	Naugatuck	2/21/2024	S	Beacon Falls, Bethany, Prospect, Waterbury, Middlebury, Oxford	No	Revisions to Subdivision Regulations
FARM-43-022124-Z	Farmington	2/21/2024	Z	Plainville, New Britain, Newington, West Hartford, Avon, Burlington, Bristol	No	Text Amendment - Family and Group Child Care Homes and Centers



NVCOG Reference Number	Municipality	Date Rec'd	Туре	Adjacent Munis	Regionally Significant	Description of Referral
NAUG-44-022724-Z	Naugatuck	2/27/2024	Z	Beacon Falls, Bethany, Prospect, Waterbury, Middlebury, Oxford	No	Text Amendment to Section 23- Schedule A - I-1 Zone; Section 24.1 - Schedule B; Section 4 - Definitions
WASH-45-030124-Z	Washington	3/1/2024	Z	Roxbury, Woodbury, Bethlehem, Morris, Litchfield, Warren, Kent, New Milford	No	Text Amendments Group and Family Child Care Homes; Text Amendments Shop and Storage Use by Contractors and Building Tradesmen allowed by special permit in residential zones
BRIS-46-030424-Z	Bristol	3/4/2024	Z	Southington, Plainville, Farmington, Burlington, Plymouth, Wolcott	No	Application AZR 24-1; Text amendments - Use Definitions; Sec.4.1; Sec. 4.2 - Community Youth Organization
THOM-47-031824-Z	Thomaston	3/18/2024	Z	Waterbury, Plymouth, Harwinton, Litchfield, Morris, Watertown	No	Text Amendments - Permitted uses and structures in Commercial and Manufacturing Zones